UNITED STATLES FiLeD
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
RIZGION 6

DALLAS, TEXAS REGIU A il ad i

IN THE MATTIR OF:

DOCKET NOS. RCRA-06-2012-0934
and RCRA-06-20112-0937

US ECOLOGY TEXAS, INC., and
T X ASSOCIATES LP

RESPONDENTS

CONSENT AGREEMIENT AND FINAL ORDER

The Director of the Compliance Assurance and Enforcement Division of the
United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Region 6 (Complainant) and
US Ecology Texas, Inc. and TD*X Associates L.P. (Respondents) in the above-referenced
proceeding, hereby agree 1o resolve this matter through the issuance ol this Consent Agreement
and Final Order (CAFO),

I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. This proceeding for the assessment of civil penalties and the issuance of a compliance
order is brought by EPA pursuant 1o Section 3008 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery
ACU{RCRA), 42 U.S.C. § 6928, as amended by the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of
1984 (FISWA), and 1s simultaneously commenced and concluded through the issuance of this
Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFQ} pursuani 1o 40 CIR, §8§ 22.13(b), 22.18(b}(2)
and (3), and 22.37.

2. Notice of this action was given 1o the State of T'exas prior 1o the issuance ol this

CAIFQ, as required by Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(2).
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3. ¥For the purposes of this proceeding, the Respondents admit the jurisdictional
allegations contained herein; however, the Respondents neither adimit nor deny the specilic
{actual allegations contained in this CAFO.

4, The Respondents explicitly waive any right to contest the allegations and their right o
appeal the proposed Final Order sct fortl: thercin, and waive all defenses which have been raised
or could have been raised 1o the claims set forth in the CAFO.

5. Compliance with all the terms and conditions of this CAIFO shall resolve only those
violations which are set forth herein.

6. The Respondents consent to the issuance of the CAFO hereinafter recited and consent
to the 1ssuance of the Comphiance Order contained therein.

II. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

A. PRELIMINARY ALLEGATIONS

7. US Ecology Texas, Inc, (USET) is a corporation incorporated under the laws of the
State of Delaware and authorized 1o do business in the State of Texas.

8. TD*X Associates LP (I'D*X) is a imiled parinership authorized to do business in the
State of Texas.

9. “Person™ is defined in 30 TALC. § 3.2(25) [40 C. IR, §§ 260.10 and 270.2], and
Section 1004(5) of RCRA, 42 11.S.C. § 6903(15) as “an individual, corporation, organization,
government or government subdivision or agency, business trusl, partnership, association, or any
other legal entity.”

10, The Respondent USET is a “person” as defined by 30 T.AC. § 3.2 25) [40 C.T R

§ 260.10], and Section 1004 (15) of RCRA, 42 UJ.S.C. § 6903(15).
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11. The Respondent TD*X is a “person” as defined by 30 T.A.C. § 3.2 (25) |40 C.I'.R.
§ 260.10], and Scction 1004 (15) of RCRA, 42 UJ.8.C. § 6903 (15).

12, “Owner” is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(108) [40 C.F.R. § 260.10] as “the person
who owns a facility or part of a facility.”

13. “Operator” is defined in 30 T.ALC. § 335.1(107) |40 C.F.R. § 260.10] as “the person
responsible for the overall operation of a facility™.

14, “OQwner or operator” is delined in 40 C.F.R. § 270.2 as *the owner or operator
ol any lacility or activity subject to regulation under RCRA.”

15, “TFacility” is defined in 3¢ T.A.C. § 335.1(59) {40 C.IF.R. § 260.10] as meaning
“all contiguous land, and structures, other appurtenances, and improvements on the land,
used for storing, processing, or disposing of municipal hazardous waste or industrial solid wasle.
A facility may consist of several treatment, storage, or disposal operational units (¢.g., onc or
more landfills, surface impoundments, or combinations of them).”

16, The Respondent USET owns and opcrates a hazardous waste treatment, storage, and
disposal {I'SD) factlity located at 3327 County Road 69, Robstown, TX 78380, EPA 1.1D. No.
TX12069452340, Permit No., 1TW-50052-001,

17, The TSD identified in Paragraph 16 s a “lacility” ag that term is defined in
30 TAC §335.1(59) [40 C.FR. § 260.10].

18. The Respondent USET is the “owner™ and/or “operator” of the facility identified in
Paragraph 16, as those terms are defined in 30 TAC § 335.1(107) & (108) |40 C.F.R. § 260.10]
and 40 C.F.R. § 270.2.

19, An oil reclamation unit is located at the facility identified in Paragraph 16.
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20. The Respondent TD*X owns and operates a thermal desorption unit (1'DU), as well
as the feed preparation system that includes a shaker tank (T-30), three mix tanks (1-31, 1-32,
and T-33), a centrifuge, and a surge tank (T-34) at the oil reclamation vnit.

21. The Respondent TD*X began operating the TDU and related equipment on or about
June 15, 2008.

22. Onorabout June 8 - 11, 2010, June 14 - 17, 2010, and August 9 — 11, 2010, the
Respondent USETs TSD facility and the oil reclamation unit were inspected by representatives
Oof EPA pursuant to Section 3007 of RCRA, 42 11.S.C. § 6927,

B. VIOLATIONS

Count One - Processing Hazardous Waste Without a Permit or Interim Status

23, Pursuant to Scctions 3005(a) and (¢) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6925(a) and (c), and
30T AC. §335.43(a) (40 CER. § 270.1(b)], a RCRA permit or interim status is required for the
Processing (treatment),’ storage, or disposal of hazardous wasic,

24, “Hazardous waste” is defined in 30 T A.C. § 335.1(69) |40 C.F.R. § 261 3] as “any
solid waste identified or listed as a hazardous waste by the administrator of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency in accordance with the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 United States Code, §§ 6901
el seq.”

25, “Reeyclable materials” is defined in 30 T.ALC. §335.24(a) [40 C.I'R. § 261.6(a)(1)]

as “hazardous wastes that are recyceled™

I'he Texas Administrative Code uses the term “processing” instead of “treatment”. The
term “processing” as used by Texas is essentially equivalent to the term “treatment” as used in
ihe federal statute and regulations.
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20, The Respondent USET receives “hazardous waste™ from off-site generators, as that
term is defined by 30 T.ALC. § 335.1(69) [40 C.F.R. § 201.3].

27. The Respondent USET receives “recyclable materials” from off-site gencralors, as
that term is defined by 30 T.ALC. § 335.24(a) [40 C.IF.R. § 201.6(a)(1)].

28. Recyelable materials destined lor oil reclamation arc transferred to the Respondent
TD*X by the Respondent USET.

29. Processing (treatment) is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(122) [40 C.I' R
§ 260.10] as follows:

The extraction of materials, transfer, volume reduction, conversion o energy, or
other separation and preparation of solid waste for reuse or disposal, including the
trealment or neutralization of solid waste or hazardous waste, designed to change
the physical, chemical, or biological character or composition of any solid waste
or hazardous waste so as 1o neutralize such waste, or so as to recover energy or
material from the waste or so as to render such wasle nonhazardous, or less
hazardous; safer to transport, store or dispose of; or amenable for recovery,
amenable for storage, or reduced in volume. The transfer of solid waste for reuse
or disposal as used in this definition docs not include the actions ol a transporter
in conveying or transporting solid waste by truck, ship, pipeline, or other means.
Unless the executive director determines that regulation of such activity is
necessary (o protect human health or the environment, the definition of processing
does not mciude activilics relating to those materials exempted by the
administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency 1n
accordance with the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 United States Code, §§6901 ¢f seq.,
as amended,

30. On various dates after June 15, 2008, certain recyclable materials were processed in
the tanks 1dentified 1n Paragraph 20.

31. The recyclable materials identified in Paragraph 30 did not meet the exemption in
30 T.ALC. § 335.24(c)(AX() 140 CE.R. § 261.6(@)3)Iv)C) because the hazardous wastes were
not “oil-bearing hazardous wastes from petroleum refining, production, and (ransportation

practices.”
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32. 'The Respondent T1Y*X processed (treated) hazardous waste as that term 1s
defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(122) [40 C.F.R. § 260.10] in the tanks identified in
Paragraph 20.

33. To date, neither the Respondent USED nor Respondent TD*X has applied for nor
received a RCRA permit or interin status 1o allow the processing (ireatment) of hazardous waste
in the tanks identified i Paragraph 20.

34, Therefore, the Respondent USET and the Respondent TI)*X have violated Sections
3005(a) and (¢} of RCRA, 42 U.S.C, §§ 0925(a) and (¢}, and 30 T.A.C. § 335.43(a) [40 C.F.R.
§ 270.1(b)] by processing ({reating) hazardous waste without a RCRA pernut or interim status,

Count Two — Processing Hazardous Waste Without a Permit or Interim Status

35. Pursuant to Sections 3005(a) and (¢) ol RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6925(a) and (¢), and
30°T.A.C.§ 335.43(a) 140 C.I.R. § 270.1(b)], a RCRA permit or interim status 1s required for the
processing (treatment), storage, or disposal of hazardous wasle.

36. “Hazardous waste” is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(69) [40 C.I".R. § 261.3] as “any
soltd waste identified or listed as a hazardous waste by the administrator of the United States
Environmental Protection Agency in accordance with the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 United States Code, §§ 6901
ef seq.”

37. “Receyclable materials™ is defined in 30 T.ALC. §335.24(a) {40 C.IV.R. § 261.6{(a)(1)]
as “hazardous wastes that arc recycled”.

38. The Respondent USET receives “hazardous waste™ from off-site generators, as that

lerm is defined by 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(69) [40 C.FR. § 261.3].

¢
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39. 'The Respondent USET receives “recyclable materials™ from off-site generators, as
that term is defined by 30 T.A.C. § 335.24(a) [40 C.IF.R. § 261.6(a)(1)].

40. Recyelable materials destined for oil reclamation are transferred Lo the Respondent
TD#X by the Respondent USET,

41, On various dates after June 15, 2008, certain recyclable materials were fed into the
TDU that did not meet the exemption in 30 T.A.C. § 335.24(c)(4XC) |40 C.I'.R.
§ 261.6()3)iv)}(C) because the hazardous wastes were not “oil-bearing hazardous wastes Irom
petroleum refining, production, and {ransportation practices,”

42. Proccssing (treatment) is defined in 30 T.A.C, § 335.1(122) [40 C.F.R.
§ 260.10] as follows:

The extraction of materials, transfer, volume reduction, conversion to chergy, of
other separation and preparation of solid waste for reuse or disposal, including the
treatment or neutralization of solid waste or hazardous waste, designed to change
the physical, chemical, or biological character or composition of any solid waste
ot hazardous wasle so as 10 neulralize such waste, O 50 as 10 TECOVET energy of
malterial {rom the waste or so as to render such waste nonhazardous, or less
hazardous; safer lo fransport, store or dispose of; or amenable for recovery,
amenable for storage, or reduced in volume, The transfer of solid waste for reuse
or disposal as used in this definition does not include the actions of a transporter
in conveying or transporting solid waste by truck, ship, pipeline, or other means,
Unless the executive direcior determines that regulation of such activity is
necessary to protect human health or the environment, the definition of processing
does not include activities relating 1o those materials exempted by the
administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency in
accordance with the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 United States Code, §§6901 ef seq.,
as amended.
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43. Thermal processing (thermal treatment) 1s defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(149)
[40 C.IF.R. § 260.10] as follows:

the processing of solid waste or hazardous waste in a device which uses elevated
temperatures as the primary means 1o change the chemical, physical, or biological
character or composition of the solid waste or hazardous waste. Examples of
thermal processing are incineration, molten salt, pyrolysis, calcination, wet air



Pocket Nos. RCRA-06-2012-0936 and RCRA-006-2012-0937
oxidation, and microwave discharge. (See also “Incinerator” and “open

burning.”).

44, The DU uses heat from an indirect heated rotary dryer to separate the organic
constituents from the hazardous waste feed material. A nitrogen carrier gas 15 used to transfer
the vapor phase organic constituents 1o a gas treatment system. The oil is recovered by
condensing vapor phase organic constituents in the gas treatment system. A portion of the
TIDUW’s recirculating nitrogen carrier gas, along with non-condensable gases, is vented, filtered,
and then injected into the combustion chamber of the TDU, where it 1s burned,

45. I'he separation of the organic constituents from the hazardous waste 10 the TDU s
indircetly heated rofary dryer constitutes thermal processing (thermal treatment) as that teim is
defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(149) {40 C.F.R. § 260.101.

46. To date, neither the Respondent USET nor Respondent TD*X has applicd for nor
received a RCRA permit or inferim status to allow the thermal processing (thermal treatment) of
hazardous waste in the TDU,

47. Therefore, the Respondent USET and the Respondent TD*X have violated Sections
3005(¢a) and (¢} of RCRA, 42 1.S.C. §§ 6925(a) and (e), and 30 T.A.C. § 335.43(a) [40 C.I'R.
§ 270,1(b}} by thermally processing (thermally treating) hazardous waste without a RCRA
permit or inferim status.

Count Three - Processing Hazardous Waste Without a Permit or Inferim Status

48. Pursuant to Sections 3005(a) and (¢) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6925(a) and (¢), and
30 T.AC§335.43(a) [40 CF R, § 270.1(b)], a RCRA permit or interim status is required for the
processing (treatment), storage, or disposal of hazardous waste,

49, “Hazardous waste” is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(69) [40 CI.R. § 261.3] as “any

sohid waste identified or listed as a hazardous waste by the administrator of the United States
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Environmental Profection Agency in accordance with the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 United States Code, §§ 6901
et seq.”

50. The Respondent USET receives “hazardous waste” from off-site generators, as that
term is delined by 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(69) [40 C.F.R. § 261.3].

51. Hazardous wastes destined for oil reclamation are transiferred to the Respondent
TD*X by the Respondent USET,

52. On various dates aficr Junc 15, 2008, hazardous wastes were fed infe the TDU,

53. "The 'TDU uses heat from an indircet heated rotary dryer to separate the organic
constituents from the hazardous wastc feed material. A nitrogen carrier gas is used to transfer
the vapor phasc organic constiluents {o a gas treatment sysiem. The oil is recovered by
condensing vapor phase organic constituents in the gas treatment sysiem. A portion of the
TDUs recirculating nitrogen carrier gas, along with non-condensable pases, is vented, filtered,
and then injected into the combustion chamber of the TDU, where it is burned.

54. Processing (treatment) is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(122) [40 C.F.R.
§ 260110} as follows:

The extraction of materials, fransfcr, volume reduction, conversion (o energy, or

other separation and preparation of solid waste for reuse or disposal, mcluding the

treatment or neutralization of solid wastc or hazardous wasic, designed to change

the physical, chemical, or biological character or composition of any solid waste

or hazardous waste so as to neuiralize such wasie, or so as 1o recover encrgy or

material from the waste or so as to render such waste nonhazardous, or less

hazardous; saler o transport, store or dispose of; or amenable for recovery,

amenable for storage, or reduced in volume, The transfer of solid waste for reuse

or disposal as used in this definition does not include the actions of a transporter

1n conveying or transporting solid waste by truck, ship, pipeline, or other means,

Unless the executive director determines that regulation of such activity is

necessary to protect human health or the environment, the definition of processing

does not include activities relating to those materials exempted by the
administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency in

9
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accordance with the federal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 United States Code, §§0901 ef seq.,

as amended,

55. Thermal processing (thermal treatment) is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(149)

(40 C.IF.R. § 260.10] as follows:

the processing of solid waste or hazardous waste in a device which uses elevated

femperatures as the primary means to change the chemical, physical, or biological

character or composition of the solid waste or hazardous waste. Ixamples of

thermal processing are incineration, molien salt, pyrolysis, calcination, wet air

oxidation, and microwave discharge, (See also “incinerator” and “open burning.”)

56. The burning of pascs in the TIYU’s combustion chamber constitutes thermal
processing (thermal treatiment) as that term is defined in 30 T ALC. § 335.1(149)

140 C.I.R. § 260.10].

57. The combustion chamber of the TDU is an enclosed device that uscs
controlied flame combustion,

58. The combustion chamber of the TDU does not meet the criteria for classification as a
boiler, sludge dryer, or carbon regeneration unit, nor is listed as an industrial furnace; nor meets
the definition of infrared incinerator or plasma arc incinerator.”

59. To date, neither the Respondent USET nor Respondent TID*X has applied for nor
received a RCRA permit or interim s{atus to allow the thermal processing (thermal treatment) of
hazardous waste in the combustion chamber of the TIDU.

60. Therefore, the Respondent USET and the Respondent TD*X have violated and
conunue to violale Sections 3005(a) and (¢) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6925(a) and (¢) and
30T.AC §335.43(a) [40 C IR, § 270.1(b)| by thermally processing (thermally treating)

hazardous waste without a RCRA permit or interim status.
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Count Four — Storing Hazardous Waste Without a Permit Or Interim Status

61, Pursuant to Sections 3005(a) and (¢) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6925(a) and (¢), and
30 T.A.C. § 335.43(a) [40 C.F.R. § 270.1(b)]. a RCRA permit or interim status is required for the
processing (treatiment), storage, or disposal of hazardous waste.

62, “Storage” is defined in 30 T.A.C. § 335.1(143) [40 C.I'.R. § 260.10] as “the holding
of solid waste for a temporary period, at the end of which the waste is processed, disposed of,
recycled, or stored elsewhere.”

63, Between on or about March 9, 2010, and June 11, 2010, the Respondent USET
stored roll-off boxes in the area called the “Y™ at the facility,

64. "The roll-off boxes identified in Paragraph 63 contained material which had enterced
the oil reclamation process and was being temporarily staped before undergoing subsequent
stages of the reclamation process. The Respondent USIST discontinued the use of the area called
the “Y™ for this purpose.

65. “Hazardous waste” is defined in 30 T.A.C, § 335.1(69) |40 C.F.R. § 261.3] as “any
solid waste identified or listed as a hazardous waste by the administrator of the Unifed States
Environmental Protection Agency in accordance with the Tederal Solid Waste Disposal Act, as
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 United States Code, §§ 6901
el seq.”

66. The roll-off boxes identified in Paragraph 63 contained “hazardous waste” as that
term is defined in TUALC, § 335.1(09) [40 C.F.R. § 2061.31.

67. The Respondent USIET had not applied for nor received a RCRA permit or interim

status o allow the storage of hazardous waste al the area called the “Y™.

11
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68. Therelore, the Respondent USET has violated Sections 3005(a) and (c) of RCRA,
42 U.S.C. §§ 6925(a) and (¢), and 30 T.A.C. § 335.43(a) [40 C.F.R. § 270.1(b)] by storing
hazardous waste without a RCRA permit or interim slatus.

HI. COMPLIANCE ORDER

69. Pursuant o Seclion 3008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a), the Respondents are
hereby ORDERED 1o take the following actions and provide evidence of compliance within the
time period specified below:

A. Interim Operating Reguirements

1. As of the effective date of this CATFO, feedstock for the oil reclamation unit shall
consist only of non-hazardous waste, and oil-bearing hazardous waste from petroleum refining,
production, and transportation practices. Qil-bearing hazardous waste from petroleum refining,
production, or transportation practices includes the following listed hazardous waste from
specific Petroleum Refining Sources (K049, K050, K051, K052, K169, and K170). Also
acceptable 1s oil-bearing hazardous waslc from processces which meet the definition of the
following Standard Industrial Classification (S1C) codes and corresponding North American
Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes (i.¢., petroleum refining, production, and

transportation practices) as follows:

SIC SIC Deseription .~ | NAICS | NAICS Title - -
Code e Cede | o L :
L1311 Crude Petroleum & Natural Gas | 211111 | Crude Petroleum and Natural Gas
: Extraction _
1321 Natural (Gas Liguids 211112 | Natural Gas Liquid Extraction
1381 | Drilling Oil & Gas Wells 213111 | Drilling Oil and Gas Wells
1382 01l & Gas Jield Exploration 213112 | Support Activities for Oil & Gas
Services {except geophysical Ogpecrations
... mapping & surveying)
1389 | Oil and Gas TPield Services, 213112 | Support Activities for O1l and Gas
NIC (except construction of Operations
field gathering lines, site
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preparation and related
construction activities
performed on a contract or fee
2911 i Petroleum Refining 324110 | Petreleum Refineries
4612 Crude Petroleum Pipelines 486110 | Pipeline 'I'ransportation of Crude Oil
4613 Refined Petroleum Pipelines 480910 | Pipcline Transportation of Refined
_______________ Petroleum Products
4789 | Transportation Services, NEC | 488999 | All Other Support Activities for
(pipeline terminals and Transportation
stockyards for transportation) SUURTEUUR U _—
4922 ) Natural Gas Transmission | 486210 | Pipeline Transportation of Natural Gas |
4923 . Natural Gas Transmission and 221210 | Natural Gas Distribution
.| Distribution (distribution) |
4923 Natural Gas Transmission and | 486210 Pipeline Transportation of Natural Gas
5171 Petroleum Bulk Stations and 488999 | All Other Support Activilies for
Terminals (except petroleum Transportation
sold via retail method) e
5172 Petroleum and Petroleum 424720 | Petroleum and Petroleum Products
Products Wholesalers, Tixcept Merchant Wholesalers (except Bulk
Bulk Stations and Terminals Stations and Terminals)
{merchant wholesalers)

2, Using feedstock from processes meeting the definition of the aforementioned

SIC/NAICS Codes does not constitute compliance with 40 CF R, § 261.6(a)3)iv}{C) or this

CATFO. The Respondents are required to make a separate determination whether the bazardous

waste in question is “oil-bearing,” and that the hazardous waste was originally gencrated from

petroleun refining, production, or transportation practices.

3. As of the effective date of this CAFO, when the dryer feed is on, the Respondents

shall operate the TDU in accordance with the interim operaling parameters set forth in

Appendix 1, Table A, which 1s attached and incorporated by reference into this CATO. The

Blending Protocols referenced in Appendix 1 is attached as Appendix 2, and incorporated by

relerence inte this CAFO.

13
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4. As of the effective date of this CAFQ, Respondents shall comply with the Start-Up,
Shutdown, and Malfunction Plan (SSM Plan) (CDT Plan, Appendix J2), The Compliance
Demonstration Test (CDT) Plan is attached as Appendix 3 and incorporated by reference mto the
CATO.

5. Within sixty (60) days of the effective date of this CAJO, the Respondents shall
conduct 4 tune-up of the external combustion chamber of the TDU in accordance with the
followmg requirements:

a. As applicable, inspect the burner and clean or replace any components of the burner as
necessary. The burner inspection may be delayed until the next scheduled or unscheduled unit
shutdown.

b. Inspect the flame pattern, as applicable, and adjust the burner as necessary to oplimize
the flame pattern. The adjustiment should be consistent with the manufacturer’s specification.

¢. Inspeet the system controlling the air-to-fuel ratio, as applicable, and cnsure that it is
correctly calibrated and functioning properly.

d. Optimize total emissions of carbon monoexide {CO). This optimization should be
consistent with the manufacturer’s specifications, il available,

e. Measure the concentrations in the effluent stream of CO in parts per million, by
volume, and oxygen in volume percent, before and after the adjustments are made.
Measurements may be either on a dry or wet basis, as long as it 1s the same basis before and after
the adjustments are made.

. Perform sampling and analysis of both deyer furnace stacks vsing Method TO-15,
“Determination of Volatile Organic Compounds (VOCs) In Air Collected In Specially-Prepared

Canisters And Analyzed By Gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry (GC/MS)”. I the total

14
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organic matter result is greater than 10 ppmV for either stack, the analysis shall include
speciation of the gas. This information shall be included in the report required in Paragraph
69.A.5.g below.

g. Maintain on-site a report documenting the concentrations of CQ in the effluent stream
in parts per million by volume, and oxygen in volume present, measured before and alter the
adjustments of the external combustion chamber of the TDU, and a description of any corrective
actions taken as part of the combustion adjustment,

h. Subsequent fune-ups shall be conducted annually until the TDU is reconfigured.

6. Within sixty (60} days of the effective date of this CATFQ, the Respondents shall
conduct a fuel specification analysis of the purge vent gas {or mercury and document that it does
not exceed the maximum concentration of 40 micrograms/cubic meter of mercury using {est
methods ASTM D5954, ASTM D6350, 1SO 6978-1:2003(13), or [SO 6978-2:2003(1), or an
alternate test method approved by EPA. Il'the concentration of mercury exceeds 40
micrograms/cubic meter, the Respondents shall immediately notify EPA.

7. Within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this CAFQ, the Respondents shall
install, monitor, and operate an automatic hazardous waste feed cutoff (AWFCO) at the TDU in
accordance with 40 C.IRR. § 63.1206(c)}(3)(i1) and (iv} that immediately and automatically cuts
off the hazardous waste feed when any component of the AWFCO system fails, or when one or
more of the interim operating parameters set forth in Appendix 1, Table A that are designated as
AWICO parameters are not miet. The Respondents shall also comply with the investigation,
recordkeeping, testing, and reporting reguivements ol 40 C.F.R. § 63.1206(c)(3)(v), (vi) and (vii).

8. Within onc ycar of the cifective date of this CAFO, the Respondents shall reconfigure

the TDU so that the non-condensable vent gases are routed 10 a thermal oxidizing unii (TOU)

15
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instead of the combustion chamber of the TDU (Reconfigured TDU). After reconfiguration, fuel
for the TDU is limited to natural gas and propane.

9. The Respondents shall operate the Reconfigured TDU during the shakedown period in
accordance with the operating parameters limits set forth in Appendix 1, Table B when the dryer
feed is on. The Respondent shall not operate the Reconfigured TDU more than 720 hours
{including the shakedown pertod and the Compliance Demonstration T'est). The Respondents
shall keep records of the hours of operation during the shakedown period. The Respondents
shall operate a continuous emissions monitor system (CEMS) for carbon monoxide (CO) for the
TOU during the shakedown period. The Respondents shall operate the Reconfigured TOU ina
manner that the hourly rolling averages for CO are not exceeded. The rolling averages shall be
calculated in accordance with 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.1209(a){(6) and 63.1209(b)(5).

10. During the shakedown period, the Respondents shall monitor and operate an
automatic hazardous waste feed cutofl (AWFCO) at the Reconfigured TDU in accordance with
40 C.I'.R. § 63.1206(c)(11) and (iv) that immediately and automatically cuts off the hazardous
wasle feed when any component of the AWICO system fails, or when one or more of the
opcrating parameter limits set forth in Appendix 1, Table B that are designated as AWFCO
parameters are nof met, The Respondents shall also comply with the investigation,
recordkeeping, lesting, and reporting requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 63.1206(c)3) (v}, (vi) and
{vi1).

11, The Respondents shall conduet a test measuring the concentration of CO mn the
exhaust gases from the TOU. This test shall include three one-hour runs during which the TIU
is operated on oil-bearing hazardous waste. The emissions from the TOU stack shall be

monitored lor carbon monoxide and oxygen using EPA Mecthod 10. The emissions shall be
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demonstrated (o be less than 100 ppmV CO corrected 10 7% O in each run. The test frequency
shall be once during each six-month period, January 1~ June 30 and July 1 - December 31, said
time period to commence afler conducting the CD'1 and continuing until the TCEQ issues a
RCRA Subpart X permit for the Reconfigured TDU, Within Jorty-five (45) days after
conducting the test, the Respondents shall submit a fest report to EPA summarizing the test
results. The time periods for conducting the test may be changed to once during each twelve
{12) month calendar period, January | ~ December 31, if the Respondents submit to EPA, with 4
copy o TCEQ, a detailed feed stream analysis plan that characterizes the waste received by the
facility, and EPA approves the plan,  The defailed feedstream analysis plan shall be prepared in
accordance with 40 C.I".R. § 264.13 and the EPA Guidance Document “Waste Analysis Al
Tacilities That Generate, Treat, Store, And Dispose of Hazardous Waste”, OSWER 9938.4-03
(April 1994). The Respondents will implement the detailed feedstream analysis plan, as
approved or modified by EPA, immediately upon receipt of FPA’s approval.

12. The Respondents shall prepare a report for the time period beginning on the
effective date of this CAFO and ending June 30, 2013, and cvery six {0) months thercafier. The
report shall be submitted to EPA, with a copy to TCEQ, within thirty (30) days of the end of the
reporting period. The report shall include the following:

a. For each waste stream accepted by the o1l reclamation uniy, identify the customer,
original generator, waste stream description, RCRA waste codes, the SIC or NAICS code of the
process generating the waste, a summary of any analyses conducted by the Respondents to verify
the waste stream profiles, and the total volume of waste accepled during the reporting period. If
requested by [IPA, the Respondents shall provide copies of relevant waste approval documents

and manifests for the specific waste streams.
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b. All time periods in which there were exceedances of the operating parameters and the
AWFCO requirements set forth in Appendix 1, Tables A and B, and exccedances of the hourly
rolling averages for CO (Paragraph 69.A.9).

¢. All exceedances of the Reconfigured TDU Compliance Standards and the AWEFCQO
requirements established in accordance with Paragraph 69.C.9.

d. The initial Report shall include documentation showing that the tunc-up and {ucl
specification analysis required by Paragraphs 69.A.5 and 69.A.6 have been conducted, and
provide documentation showing the date of installation and subsequent operation of the AWFCO
system required by Paragraphs 69.A.7.

¢. Documentation showing the installation of the TOU required by Paragraph 69.A.8,
and the additional AWFFCO requirements required by Appendix 1, Table B (Paragraph 69.A.10).

‘The Report may be submitted in an clectronic format (i.c., compact disk). The
Respondents may claim the report as confidential business information (CI31}, in accordance
with the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 2. However, information that 1s emissions data or a
standard or limitation cannot be claimed as CBI, 40 C.I'.R. § 2.301(¢). 1/ the Report contains
any information that is claimed CBI, the Respondents shall provide a redacted version with all
CBI deleted.

B. RCRA Permit Modification

1. Within one year of the effective date of this CAFO, the Respondents shall submit to
TCEQ, with a copy to EPA, an application for a Class 3 RCRA Permit Modification to permit
the Reconfigured TDU as a miscellancous unit under 40 C.IF.R. Part 264, Subpart X in
accordance with 30 1.A.C. § 335.152(a)(16) |40 C.IF.R. Part 264, Subpart X, 30 T A.C., Chapter

305 (40 CLR.§§ 270.10-270.14, 270.19, 270.23, and 270.30 - 270.33].
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2. The permit application shall also include relevant requirements of 40 C.I.R. Part 264,
Subparts | through O and AA through CC, 40 C.F.R. Part 270, and 40 C.I'.R. Par{ 63, Subpart
EER that are appropriatc for the operation of the Reconfigured TDU, including an engineering
report, waste analysis, monitoring and inspection requirements, and closure requirements set
forthin 30 T.A.C. § 335.152(a)(13) [40 C.F.R. §§ 264,341, 264.347, and 264,351},

3. The Respondents shall also request that the issucd RCRA permit modification include
the following:

a. The feedstock limitations applicable to the operation of the oil reclamation unit under
40 C.IV.R. § 261.6(a)(3X}iv)(C) set forth in Paragraph 69.1;

b. The investigation, recordkeeping, testing, and reporting requirements of 40 C.F.R.

§ 63.1206(¢}(3) (v), {vi) and (vii);

¢. Appropriate recordkeeping and reporting requirements; and

d. Any applicable risk-based terms and conditions necessary 1o protect human health and
the environment.

4. The failure to timely submit a Class 3 Perinil Modiftcation to TCEQ and EPA within
the deadline sct forth in Paragraph 69.18.1 shall result in the {ermination of the Respondents’
authorization to operate the Reconfigured TDU on that date unless that deadline has been
extended pursuant to Section IV. I (Force Majeure).

5. By no later than three and one-hall years (42 months) from the effective date of this
CATO, the Respondents must complete all permitting requirements and obtain issuance from the
TCEQ of a final RCRA Subpart X permit for the TDU as a Subpart X - Miscellaneous Unit in
accordance with 30 T.A.C. § 335.152(a)(16) {40 C.F.R. Part 264, Subpart X], 30 T.A.C. Chapter

305 [40 CIER. §§ 27010 - 270,14, 270.19, 270.23, and 270.30 -- 270.33]. and which
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incorporates the appropriate requirements of 40 C.IF.R. Part 264, Subparts I through O and AA
through CC, 40 C.I*.R. Part 270, and 40 C.F.R Part 63, Subparl EEE. In the event that TCEQ
does not issue a RCRA Subpart X permit for the Reconfigured TDU as described above by the
above deadling, the Respondents’ authorization 1o operate the Reconfigured TDU terminates on
that date, unless that deadline has been extended pursuant to Section IV.I° (JFforce Majeure).

C. Compliance Demonstration Test

1. The Respondents shall perform a compliance demonstration test (CDT) in accordance
with the approved CDT Plan, which is attached as Appendix C and incorporated by reference
into the CAFO. The CDT requires the Respondents to demonstrate compliance with the
emissions limits of 40 C.F.R. § 63.1219(b) set forth in Paragraph C.5, the destruction and
removal efficiency standard of 40 C.17R, § 63.1219(¢)(1) sct forth in Paragraph C.4, and
establish Himits for the operafing parameters sct forth in Paragraph 69.C.6 (Appendix 1, Table C).

2. Within sixty (60} days of the eflective date of this CAFO, the Respondents shall
submil to EPA for approval, with a copy to TCEQ, a Quality Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) for
the CDT. The QAPP shall be prepared in accordance with the EPA Region 6 Guidance “Quick
Relerence Guide, Test Burn Program Planning for Hazardous Waste Combustion (HWC) Units”
dated August 6, 2012, The Respondents shall implement the QAPP as approved or modified by
[IPA.

3. The Respondents shall implement the CDT 1n accordance with Appendix 3 within
ninety (90) days after reconfiguration of the TDU pursuant to Paragraph 69.A.8 of this CAFQ.

4. During the CDT, the Respondents must achieve a destruction and removal elficiency
(DRE) 0f 99.99% for toluene, the designated principle organice hazardous constituent (POLC),

‘The DRI shall be calculated in accordance with 40 C.FR. § 63.1219(c)(1).
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5. The emission limits that must be met during the CDT are set forth in 40 C.I.R,
§ 63.1219(b).

6. The operating parameters limits that will be established during the CDT are set forth
in Appendix I, Table C.

7. The Respondents must not exceed the emisston limis set forth in 40 C.1°.R.
§ 63.1219(b), and must achieve a DRI of 99.99% for toluene [as set {orth in 40 C.FF R,
§ 63.1219(c)] for all three runs in order to have a successful CDT. 1f the Respondents determine,
based on the results of analyses of stack samples, that they have exceeded any emission standard
or failed to meet the DRE requirement during any of the three runs, they must immediately cease
processing hazardous waste in the Reconfigured TDU. The Respondents must make this
determation within forty-five (45) days following completion of the CDT. The Respondents
may not resume operation of the Reconfigured TDU until the Respondents have submitted and
received EPA approval of a revised CLYT plan, at which time operations can resume 1o
demonstrate compliance with the emission Himits and DRE requirements during all ol the three
runs.

8. All analyses required by the CD'T plan shall be pcri’brmed by a NELAC accredited
laboratory or by a laboratory pre-approved by TCEQ.

9. Within ninety (90) days from completion of the CDT, the Respondents shall submif a
(DT Repott to EPA and TCEQ prepared in accordance with requirements in the CIYT Plan,
documenting compliance with the DRE standard and emission limits set forth in Paragraphs
69.C.4 and 69.C.5, and 1dentifying operating parameter limits and AWEFCO settings for the
parameters set forth in Appendix 1, Table C. The DRI standard, ecmission limits, opcrating

parameter Hmits, and the AWICO gcttings shall alse be set forth in a scparate Appendix entitled
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“Reconfigured THU Compliance Standards”, Al data collected during the CD'T (including, but
not limited 1o, field logs, chain-of-custody documentation, monitoring data, sampling and
analytical results, and any other data or calculations supporting the emissions calculations or
operating parameter 1imits) must be submitted to EPA and TCLQ as part of the CDT Report.
However, information in the CDT Report that is emissions data or a standard or limitation cannot
be claimed as CBI. 40 C.F.R. § 2.301(e). Ifthe Report contains any information that 1s claimed
('BI, the Respondents shall provide a redacted version with all CBI delcted.

10, As of the date of the submission of the CDT Report, the Respondent shall comply
with all operating requirements set forth in the “Reconfigured TDU Compliance Standards”,
unless otherwise notified by RPA.

11. EPA will review the CDT Report. EPA will make a finding concerning compliance
with the emissions standards, DRE requirements, and other requirements of the CDT. If EPA
determines that the Respondents have met all the requirements, it shall issue a Finding of
Compliance to the Respondents. If EPA determines that the Respondents did not meet all of the
requirements, it shall issue a Finding of Non-Compliance, Subject to Paragraph 69.C.7 of this
CAFOQ, the issuance of a Finding of Non-Compliance by EPA shall result in the termination off
the Respondents’ avthorization to operate the Reconfigured TIDU on that date.

12, The fatlure fo timely submit a CDT Report to EPA and TCEQ within ninety (90)
days from completion of the CD'T shali result in the termination of the Respondents’
authorization o operate the Reconfigured TDU on that date, unless that deadline has been

extended pursvant to Section IV.F (Force Majeure).
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D. Compliance with 40 C,F.R, § 261.6(a)(3)(iv)}((C)

1. Unless the TDU and the tanks identified i Paragraph 20 are authorized by the RCRA
Permit Modification required by Section IILB of this CAFO (or any subsequent permit
amendment) 1o receive wastes that do not meet the requirements set forth in 40 C.F.R,
§ 261.6(a2)(3)(iv){C), feedstock for the oil reclamation unit shall consist only of non-hazardous
waste, and oil-bearing hazardous waste from petroleum refining, production, and transportation
practices. Oil-bearing hazardous waste {rom petroleum refining, production, or transportation
practices includes the following listed hazardous waste from specific Petroleum Refining
Sources (K049, K050, K051, K052, K169, and K170). Also acceptable is oil-bearing hazardous
waste [rom processes which meet the definition of the following Standard Industrial
Classification (S1C) codes and corresponding North American Industry Classification System

(NAICS) codes (1.e., petroleum refining, production, and transportation practices) as {ollows;

SIC SIC Description NAICS | NAICS Title
1311 Crude Petroleum & Natural Gas | 211111 | Crude Petreleum and Natural Gas
Extraction

1321 Natural Gas Liguids 211112 | Natural Gas Liquid Extraction

1381 Drilling O1l & Gas Wells 213111 | Drlling Oil and Gas Wells

1382 | O1l & Gas Field Exploration 213112 Support Activities for Ol & Gas
services (excepl geophysical . Operations
mapping & surveying)

1389 Oil and Gas Field Services, 213112 | Support Activities for (il and Gas
NEC {except construction of Operations

field gathering lines, site

" preparation and related

| construction activitics
performed on a contract or fee

basis)
2911 Petroleum Relining 324110 | Petroleum Refineries
4612 Crude Petroleum Pipelines 486110 [ Pipeline Transportation of Crude Oil
4613 Refined Petroleum Pipelines - 486910 | Pipeline Transportation of Reflined

Petroleum Products
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. 4789 Transportation Services, NEC 488999 . All Other Support Activities for |

{(pipelie terminals and Trangportation
stockyards for transportation)
4922 | Natural Gas Transmission 486210 | Pipeline Transportation of Natural Gas

4923 Natural Gas Transmission and | 221210 | Natural Gas Distribution
Distribution (distribution)
4923 Natural Gas Transmissionand | 486210 | Pipeline Transportation of Natural Gas
Distribution (transmission)

5171 Petroleum Bulk Stations and 488999 | All Other Support Activitics for
Terminals (except petroleum Transpottation

" s0ld via retail method)

5172 Petroleum and Petroleum - 424720 | Petroleum and Petroleum Products
Products Wholesalers, Except Merchant Wholesalers (except Bulk
Bulk Stations and Termunals Stations and Terminals)

(merchant wholesalers)

Nothing in this Section H1.D shall be construed 1o preclude Respondents {rom seeking
authorization [rom the TCEQ to process oil-bearing materials outside the scope of 40 C.I'.R,
§ 26 L.6{a)3)iv)(C). However, the definition of oil-bearing hazardous waste from petroleum
refining, production, or transportation practices set forth in this Paragraph shall remain the same,

2. Using feedstock [rom processes meeting the definition of the aforementioned
SIC/NAICS Codes does not constitute compliance with 40 C.F.R. § 261.6(&1)(3)('1\’)((3) or this
CAFO. The Respondents are required to make a separate determination whether the hazardous
waste 1n question is “oil-bearing,” and that the hazardous waste was originally generated from
petroleum relining, production, or transportation practices. The Respondents shall request that
this provision be placed in the issued RCRA permit as applicable to the oil reclamation unit
operation under 40 C.F.R. § 261.6(a)(3)(iv){(C).

I&. 'TCEQ Submission, Revision, and Approval Proccss

1. For the Class 3 RCRA Permit Modification required be submitted 1o TCEQ for

approval under this CAFO, TCEQ will review the application in accordance with 30 T.A.C,
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§8 281.3(¢), 281.18 and 281,19(a) and (b). The Respondents must respond 1o any Notice off
Deficiency (NOD), with a copy to EPA, within the time period specified by the TCEQ. In the
event that the Respondents fail to submit a timely and complete NOD response, the
Respondents’ authorization to operate the TDU shall terminate on the NOD response deadline
unless that deadline has been extended pursuant to Section 1V I¥ (Force Majeure).

F. Additional Conditions

1. To comply with this CAFO, the Respondents must obtain a RCRA permit for the TDU
as a Subpart X — Miscellaneous Unit in accordance with 30 T.A.C. § 335.152(a)(16) [40 C.F.R.
Par 264, Subpart X, 30 T.A.C, Chapter 305 [40 C.F.R. §§ 270.10 - 270.14, 270.19, 270.23, and
270,30 - 270.33], and which incorporates the appropriate requirements of 40 C.I.R. Part 264,
Subparts I through O and AA through CC, and 40 C.IF.R. Part 270, and 40 C.I'.R Part 63,
Subpart EEE,

2. The Respondents may scek relief under the provisions of Section IV.F of this CAFO
(Force Majeure) for any delay in the performance of any such obligations resulling from a failure
{0 obtain, or a delay in obtaining, any permit or approval required o fullill such obligation, if the
Respondent has submitted a timely and complete application and has taken all other actions
necessary to obtain such permit or approval,

G. EPA Review and Comment on RCRA Permit

1. Nothing in this CAFO shall limit EPA’s rights under applicable environmental laws or
regulations, including, but not iimited 1o, Section 3005(c)(3) of RCRA, 42 LL.S8.C. § 6925(c)(3),
40 C.IL.R. § 270.32 and 40 C.IP.R. § 271.19, to review, comment, and incorporate appropriate

requirements of 40 C.IF.R. Parts 264, Subparts [ through O and Subparts AA through CC, and
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40 C.F.R. Part 63, Subpart EEE directly into the permit or establish other permit conditions that
are based on those patts; or lake action under Section 3008(a)(3) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 6928(a)(3), against the Respondents on the ground that the RCRA permit for the Reconfigured
TDU does not comply with a condition that the EPA Region 6 Regional Administrator in
commenting on the permit application or draft permit stated was necessary to impiecment
approved State program requirements, whether or not that condition was included in the issucd
permit. [fthe Respondent disputes an action taken by EPA pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 270.32 or
40 C.I'R. § 271.19, the Defendant may invoke Dispule Resolution in accordance with Section
IV.IE of this CAFO.

H. Submissions

It all instances in which this Compliance Order requires written submissions to EPA and
TCEQ, each submission must be accompanied by the following certification:

“I certify under penally of law to the best of my knowledge and belief, that the

information contained in or accompanying this submission is true, accurate and

complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitling false

information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing

violations.”
All submissions must be certified on behalf of the Respondent(s) by the signature of a person
authorized to sign a permit application or a report under 40 C.F.R. § 270.11.

I. Momnitoring, Recordkeeping, and Record Retention Requirements

1. Upon the effective date of this CAFQO, all interim operating paramelers (Appendix 1,
Table A), shakedown operating parameters (Appendix 1, Table B), and final operating
parameters imits (Appendix 1, Table C and Paragraph 69.C.6) subject to AWLFCO limits shall be
monitored by the facility’s Continuous Process Monitoring System (CPMS), which records data

once per minute in an electronie data log (D1.G). In addition, the Respondents shall keep copies
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of all documents relating o compliance with the operating parameters limits not monitored by
the CPMS, and all other documents relating to compliance with Section 111 of this CAFO. All
records, including electronic records, shall be kept for a period of one year afier terniination of
the CAFQ. These meniforing and recordkecping requirements are in addition to any other
monitoring and/or recordkeeping requirements required by federal, state, or focal laws,
regulations, or permits. This information shall be made available to EPA and TCTQ upon
reguest.

2. In addition, the Respondents shall preserve, for a period of one year after termination
of the CATQ, all records and documents in its possession or in the possession of its divisions,
employees, agents, conlraclors, or suceessors which in any way relate to this CALFO regardless of
any document retention policy to the contrary. This information shall be made available to EPA
and TCEQ upon request.

J. EPA Approval of Submissions

LPA will review the plans set forth in Paragraphs 69.A.11 (if applicable) and 69.C.2, and
notify the Respondents in writing of EPA’s approval or disapproval of the plan or any part
thereof. Within the time specified, the Respondents shall address the deficiencies and submit a
revised plan. BPA will approve, disapprove, or modify the revised submittal. EPA approved
plans shall be incorporated by reference into this CAFO.

IV. TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

A. CIVIL PENALTY
70. Pursuant to the authority granted in Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 11.5.C. § 6928, and
upon consideration of the entire record herein, including the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of

Law, wlich are hereby adopted and made a part hercof, and upon consideration of the
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seriousness ol the alleged viclations, the Respondents’ pood faith efforts to comply with the
applicable regulations, and the June 2003 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy, it is hereby ORDERED
that the Respondent U.S. Ecology Texas, Inc. be assessed a civil penalty of ONE HUNDRED
SIXTY-FIVE THOUSAND, SIX HUNDRED FIFTY-SEVEN DOLLARS ($165,657), and
the Respondent TD#*X Associates 1.P. be assessed a civil penalty of SIX HUNDRED
TWENTY-TWO THOUSAND, FOUR HUNDRED SIXTY-THREE DOLLARS (5622,463).
‘The Respondent USET shall pay the assessed civil penalty within thirty (30) days of the effective
date of this CAFO. The Respondent TI*X Associates L.P. shall pay the assesscd civil penalty
in four (4) payments as follows:

Payment No. 1; $157,978.35 within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this CAFO.

Payment No, 2: $157,978.35 ($153,268.99 civil penalty plus interest of $4,709.36)
within one year of the eflective date of this CAFO.

Payment No. 3: $157,978.35 ($154,822.97 civil penalty plus interest of $3,155.38)
within two years of the elfective date of this CATO.

Payment No. 4; $157,978.34 ($156,392.69 civil penalty plus interest of $1,585.65)
within three years of the effective date of this CAFO.

71, The Respondents shall pay the assessed civil penalty by certified check, cashier’s
check, or wire transfer, made payable to “Treasurer, United States of America, BPA - Region 67,
Payment shall be remitied in one of three (3) ways: regular U.S. Postal mait (including certified
mail), overnight muil, or wire transfer. For regular U.S. Postal mail, U.S. Postal Service certificd

matl, or U.8. Postal Service express mail, the check(s) should be remijited to:

28



Docket Nos, RCRA-06-2012-0936 and RCRA-06-2012-0937

.S, Environmental Protection Agency
Iines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

For overnight mail (non-1.S. Postal Scrvice, ¢.g. Fed IEx), the check(s) should be

remitted {o:

L.S. Bank

Government Lockbox 979077
US EPA Fines & Penaltics
1005 Convention Plaza
SL-MO-C2-GL.

St. Louis, MO 63101

Phone No. (314) 418-1028

For wire fransfer, the payment should be remitied 10:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York

ABA: 021030004

Account No, 68610727

SWIFT address = FRNYJS33

33 Liberty Street

New York, NY 10045

Iield Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read
“13 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency”

PLEASE NOTE: Docket numbers RCRA-(6-2012-0936 (Respondent USET) and

RCRA-06-2012-3937 (Respondent TD*X) shall be clearly typed on the respective checks to

ensure proper credit, I payment is made by check, the check shall also be accompanied by a

transmitial letter and shall reference the Respondent’s name and address, the case name, and

docket number of the CATQ. If payment is made by wire transfer, the wire transfer instructions

shall reference the Respondent’s name and address, the case name, and docket number of the

CAFO. The Respondents shall also send a simultancous notice of such payment, including a

copy of the check and transmittal letier, or wire transfer instructions (o the following:
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Chief, Compliance FEnforcement Section (6EN-HIY)

Hazardous Waste Enforcement Branch

1.8, EPA, Region 6

1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200

Dallas, TX 75202-2733

Lorena Vaughn

Reygional Hearing Clerk (6RC-D)

U.S. FPA, Region 6

1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200

Dallas, TX 75202-2733
The Respondents’ adherence to this request will ensure proper credit is given when penaluies are
recetved in the Region.

72. The Respondents agree not to claim or attempt to claim a federal income tax
deduction or eredit covering all or any part of the civil penalty paid to the United States
1reasurer,

73. Pursuant 10 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.J.R. § 13.11, unless otherwise prohibited by
law, EPA will assess interest and late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed fo the United
Stales and a charge 10 cover the costs of processing and handling a delinquent claim. Inferest on
the civil penalty assessed in this CAFFO will begin 1o accrue thirty (30) days after the effective
date of the CAFO and will be recovered by EPA on any amount of the civil penalty that is not
patd by the respective due date. Interest will be assessed at the rate of the United States Treasury
tax and loan rate in accordance with 40 C.IF.R. § 13.11{a}. Moreover, the costs of the Agency’s
administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged and assessed monthly throughout the
period the debt is overdue. See 40 C.F.R. § 13.11(b).

74, LPA will also assess a $135.00 administrative handling charge for administrative costs

on unpaid penaltics for the first thirty (30) day penod after the payment is duc and an additional

$15.00 for cach subsequent thirty (30) day period that the penalty remains unpaid, In addition, a
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penalty charge of up fo six percent per year will be assessed monthly on any portion ol the debt
witich remains delinquent more than ninety (90) days. See 40 C.F.R. § 13.11{(¢). Should a
penally charge on the debt be required, it shall acerue from the fivst day payment is delinquent.
See 31 C1.R. § 901.9(d). Other penalties for failure to make a payment may also apply.

B. PARTIES BOUND

75. The provisions of this CAFQO shall apply to and be binding upon the partics to this
action, their olficers, directors, agents, employees, successors, and assigns. The undersigned
representative of each party to this CATO certifies that he or she is fully authorized by the party
whom he or she represents to enter into the terms and conditions of this CAJFO and (o execute
and 1o legally bind that party to it
C. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS

76. The Respondents shall undertake the foliowing additional requirements:

A. The Respondents agree that the oil reclamation unit and the TDU are subject to the
requirements of 40 C.F.R, Part 61, Subpart FF.

B, Within thirty (30} days of the elfective date of the CAFOQ, the Respondents shaill
submil to EPA a certification that the foHowing equipment in the oil reclamation unit and the
DU is not in “volatile hazardous air poHutant” (VIIAP) service, as that term is defined by
40 C.I'R. § 61.241:

1. pumps;

2. COMPIEssors;

3. pressure relief deviees;

4. sampling connection systems;

5. open-ended valves or Hings;
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6. valves;

7. connectors;

8. surge control vessels;

Y. bottoms receivers; and

10. control devices and systems,

This certification shall be submiited in accordance with Paragraphs 76.H and 76.1.

(. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 61.354(¢), as ol'the ¢ffective date of this CAFO, the
Respondents shall install, calibratc, maintain, and operate according fo manufacturer’s
specifications, devices 10 continuously monitor the control devices operations required by
40 C.FR. §61.349,

D, Pursuant to 40 CJF.R. § 61.345(a), within 180 days of the elfective date ol the CAFQ,
the Respondents shall install, operate, and maintain covers on Bins 1, 2, 3, 4, and the Centrifuge
solid bins that meet the requirements of 40 C.I.R. § 61.345(a)(1). The cover and openings shall
be in a closed, scaled position at all times that waste is in the container except when it is
necessary to use the opening for waste loading, removal, inspection or sampling, as required by
40 C1.R. § 61.345(a)(1)(11). The Respondents shall monitor the cover and all openings for no
detectable emissions initially and thercafler at Jeast once per ycar by the methods specilied in
40 C.ILR. § 61.355(h).

Lz. "T'he Respondents shall use a submerged [il] pipe when transferring waste into the
containers by pumping, as required by 40 C.F.R. § 61.343(2)(2).

1. Within ninety (90) days afler the reconfiguration of the TIDU pursuant 1o Paragraph
69.A.8 of this CAFO, the Respondents shall conduct performance tests for the TOU and the

carbon adsorption system lo demonstrate compliance with the requirements of 44 C.I.R.
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§ 61.349. The performance tests shall be conducted in accordance with the requircments of
40 C.F.R. § 61.355. A copy of the performance test results shall be submitted to EPA within
ninety (90} days of completion of the performance fests. The performance tests results shall be
submitted in accordance with Paragraphs 76.11 and 76.1L
G. Within 210 days of the effective date of the CAFO, the Respendenis shall submit a
written report to EPA showing compliance with Paragraphs 76.C, 76.1, and 76.L.
1. The certification and report identified in this Section must be accompanied by the
following certification:
“] certify under penalty of law fo the best of my knowledge and belief, that the
information contained in or accompanying this submission is true, accurate and
complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false
information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.”
Al submissions must be certified on behalf of the Respondent(s) by the signature of a person
authorized to sign a permit application or a report under 40 C <R, § 270.11.
J. The certification and report required under this Section shall be sent to the following:
Craig Lutz
Toxics Enforcement Section (61EN-A'T)
Compliance Assurance and Enforcement Division
1.8, EPA, Region 6
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75202-2733
D. STIPULATED PENALTIES
77. Ly addition to any other remedies or sanctions available to 1EPA, the Respondent(s)

shall pay stipulated penalties in the following amounts for each day during which cach lailure or

refusal to comply continues:
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a. Failure to Timely Submit Reports or Plans - Paragraphs 69.A.11, 69.A.12, and 69.C2

Period of Noncompliance Penally Per Violation Per Day
1st through 15th day $ 1,000
16th through 30th day $ 1,500
31st day and beyond $ 2,500

b. Failure te Comply with Certain Interim Operating Requirements — Paragraphs 69.A.5,
69.A.6, 69.A.7 (installation of AWIFCO only), 69A.8, and 69.A.11

Period of Noncompliance Penalty Per Violation Per Day
15t through 15th day $ 1,500
16th through 30th day $ 2,500
31st day and beyond $ 5,000

c. Tailure to Comply with any Other Provision of Section 111 of this CAFO

Period of Noncompliance Penalty Per Violation Per Day
st through 15th day S 500
16th through 30th day $ 1,000
31st day and beyond $ 1,500

d. Tailure to Comply with Additional Requirements — Section [V.C

Period of Noncompliance Penalty Per Violation Per Day
1st through 15th day $ 1,500
16th through 30th day $ 2,500
31st day and beyond $ 5,000

Penalties shall acerue from the date of the noncompliance until the date the violation is corrected,

as determmed by EPA,

78. The Respondent(s) shall pay stipulated penalties not more than {ifieen (15) days afier

reeeipt of written demand by EPA for such penalties. Method of payment shall be in accordance

with the provisions of Paragraph 71 herein. Interest and late charges shall be paid as stated in

Paragraphs 73 - 74 herein.
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79. Nothing in this agrecment shall be construed as prohibiting, altering, or in any way
hmiting the ability of EPA 1o seck any other remedies or sanctions available by virtue of the
Respondent(s) violation of this CAFO or of the statutes and regulations upon which this
agreement 1s based, or [or the Respondent’s violation of any applicable provision of law,

k. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

80. 1fthe Respondents object to any decision or directive of EPA in regard to Section [il
or IV.C, the Respondents shall notify each other and the following persons in writing of its
objections, and the basis for those objections, within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of
FPA’s decision or directive:

Assoclate Direclor

Hazardous Waste Enforcement Branch (6IEN-11)
Compliance Assurance and Enforcement Division
U.S. EPA - Region 6

1445 Ross Avenue

Dallas, TX 75202-2733

Chicf, RCRA Enfor¢ement Branch (6RC-ER)
Office of Regional Counsel

L.S. EPA - Repion 6

1445 Ross Avenue

Dallas, TX 75202-2733

81, The Associate Dircctor of the Hazardous Waste Enforcement Branch or histher
designee (Associate Director), and the Respondents shall then have an additional thirty (30)
calendar days from EPA’s receipt of the Respondents” writlen objections to attempt to resolve
the dispule. I{ an agreement is reached between the Associate Director and the Respondents, the
agreement shall be reduced to writing and signed by the Associate Director and the Respondents
and incorporated by reference into this CAFQO,

82. If'no agreement is reached between the Associate Direclor and the Respondents

within that ime period, the dispute shall be submitted to the Dircctor of the Compliance
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Assurance and Enforcement Division or his/her designee (Division Director), The Division
Director and the Respondents shall then have a second 30-day period to resolve the dispute, I
an agreement s rgachcd between the Division Director and the Respondents, the resolution shall
be reduced te writing and signed by the Division Director and the Respondents and incorporated
by reference into this CAFO. I the Division Director and the Respondents are unable to reach
agreement within this second 30-day period, the Division Director shall provide a written
statement of EPA’s decision to the Respondents, which shall be binding upon the Respondents
and mncorporated by reference into the CAI'O.

83. Il'the Dispute Resolution process results in a modification of this CAIO, the
modilicd CAFO must be approved by the Regional Judicial Officer and filed pursuant to
Scction IV (Modifications).

84. 'The invocation of dispute resolution procedures under this Section shall not extend,
postpone, or affect in any way, any obligations of the Respondents under this CAFQ, unless and
until final resehution of the dispute so provides. Stipulated penalties with respect to the disputed
matter shall continue to acerue from the first day of noncompliance, but payment shall be stayed
pending resclution of the dispute. If the Respondents do not prevail on the disputed issue,
stipulated penaltics shal! be assessed and paid as provided in Section V..

F. FORCE MAJEURE

85. A “lforce majeure event” is any event beyond the control of the Respondents, their
contractors, or any entity confrolled by the Respondents that delays the performance of any
obligation under this CAIFO despite the Respondents’ best efforts to fulfill the obligation. *Best
cflorts” mcludes anticipating any potential force majeure event and addressing the cffects of any

such event () as it is occurring and (b) after it has occurred, to prevent or minimize any resulting
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delay 1o the greatest extent possible. “lorce Majeure” does not include the Respondents’
financial inability to perform any obligation under this CAFO, but does include any delays
attributable to the TCEQ’s permitting process and the conduct of the contested case hearing.

86. 'The Respondents shall provide notice orally or by electronic or lacsimile
transmission as soon as possible, but not tater than 72 hours after the time the Respondents {irst
knew of, or by the exercise of due diligence, reasonably should have known of, a claimed force
majeure evenl. The Respondents shall also provide wrilten notice, as provided in Section IV.G
ol this CAFQ, within seven days of the time the Respondents first knew of, or by the exercise of
due diligence, reasonably should have known of, the cvent. The notice shall state the anticipated
duration ol any delay; its cause(s); the Respondents’ past and proposed actions to prevent or
mmimize any delay; a schedule for carrying out those actions; and the Respondents’ rationale for
altributing any delay to a force majeure event. Failure to give such notice shall preclude the
Respondents from asserting any claim of force maj_ciu'c.

87. The Respondent also shall provide notice orally or by electronic or facsimile
transmission to the other Respondent not later than 24 hours after the time Respondent first knew
of, or by the exercise of due diligence, reasonably should have known of, a claimed force
majeure cvent, provided that the failure 10 give such notice shall not limit either Respondent’s
responsibifitics under this CAFO.,

&8. If the Complainant agrees that a force majeure event has occurred, the Complainant
may agree 10 extend the time for the Respondents to perform the affected requirements for the
time necessary to complete those obligations. An extension of time to perform the obligations

affected by a force majeure event shall not, by itself, extend the time to perform any other
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oblipation. Where the Complainant agrees 1o an extension of time, the appropriate modification
shall be made pursvant to Scction 1V H of this CAFO.

89, 1f the Complainant docs not agree that a force majeure event has occurred, or does
not agree to the exiension of time sought by the Respondents, the Complainant’s position shall
be binding, unless the Respondents invokes Dispute Resolution under Section TV.D of this
CAFO. Inany such dispute, the Respondents bear the burden of proving, by a preponderance of
the evidence, that cach claimed force majeure event is a foree majeure event; that the
Respondents gave the notice required by the paragraph above, that the force majeure event
causced any delay the Respondents’ claimed was atiributable to that event; and that the
Respondents exercised their reasonable best elforts 1o prevent or minimize any delay caused by
the event. 11 the Respondents carry this burden, the delay at {ssue shall be deemed not to be a
violation of the affected obligation of this CATO.

G. NOTIFICATION

90. Unless otherwise specified elsewhere in this CAFO, whenever notice is required to
be given, whenever a report or other document is required to be forwarded by one party 1o
another, or whenever a submission or demonstration is required 1o be made, it shall be directed
to the individuals specified below at the addresses given (in addition to any action specified by
law or regulation), unless these individuals or their successors give notice in writing to the other
partics that another individual has been designated to receive the communication:

Complainant:

Chief, Compliance Lnforcement Section (6EN-HE)

Hazardous Waste Enforcement Branch

.S, EPA, Region 6

1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200
Dallas, TX 75202-2733
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Respondent U.S. Ecology Texas, Inc.:

Mary Reagan

Mc(Gimis, Lochridge & Kilgore, L.LL.P.

600 Congress Avenue

Suite 2100

Austin, Texas 78701

Respondent TD*X Associates, L.P.:

J1.D. Head

Fritz, Bryne, Head & Harrison, PLI.C

98 San Jacinto Boulevard

Suite 2000

Austin, TX 78701

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Section Manager

Industrial and Hazardous Permits Section

Waste Permits Division

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

P.O. Box 13087 MC 130

Austin, I'X 78711
H. MODIFICATION

91, The terms, conditions, and compliance requirements of this CAFFO may not
be modified or amended except as otherwise specified in this CAFO. or upon the written
agreement of the Complainant and Respondent(s), and approved by the Regional JTudicial
Officer, and such modification or amendment being filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk.
I. RETENTION OF ENFORCEMENT RIGHTS

92. IiPA does not waive any rights or remedics available to EPA for any other vielations
by the Respondents of Fedceral or State laws, regulations, or permitling conditions.

03, lixcept as herein provided, nothing in this CAFQ shall limit the powcer and authority

of EPA or the United States 1o take, direct, or order all actions (o protect public health, welfare,

or the cnvironment, or prevend, abate or minimize an actual or threatened release of hazardous
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substances, pollutants, conlaminants, hazardous substances on, at or from the Respondent
USET’s facility or Respondent TD*Xs o1l reclamation unil and related equipment,
Furthermore, nothing in this CAFO shall be construed or (o prevent or Himnit EPA's civil and
criminal authorities, or that of other Federal, Stale, or local agencies or departments 10 obtain
penalties or injunciive reliel under other Federal, State, or local laws or regulations.

94. The Complamant reserves all legal and equitable remedies available 1o enforce the
provisions of this CAFO. This CAFO shall not be construed to limit the rights of the LPA or
Lnited States to obtain penalties or injunctive relief under RCRA or under other federal or state
laws, regutations, or permit conditions.

95. In any subsequent administrative or judicial proceeding initiated by the Complainant
or the United States for injunctive relief, civil penalties, or other appropriate relief relating to this
[Facility or the oil reclamation unit, the Respondents shall not assert, and may not maintain, any
defensce or claim based upon the principles of waiver, res judicata, collateral estoppel, issuc
preclusion, claim preclusion, claim-splitting, or other defenses based upon any contention that
the claims raised by the Complainant or the United States in the subsequent proceeding were or
should bave been brought in the instant case, except with respect to ¢laims that have been
specifically resolved pursuant to this CAFO.

96. This CAFQ is not a permit, or a modification of any permit, under any federal, State,
or local laws or regulations. The Respondents are responsible for achieving and maintaining
complete compliance with all applicable federal, State, and local laws, regulations, and permits.
The Respondents” compliance with this CAFQO shall be no defense fo any action commenced
pursuant to any such laws, regulations, or permits, execept as set forth herein, The Complainant

does not warrant or aver in any manner that the Respondents’ compliance with any aspect of this
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CALFO will result in compliance with provisions of the RCRA or with any other provisions of
federal, State, or local laws, regulations, or permits,
J. INDEMNIFICATION OF EPA

97. Neither 1:PA nor the United States Government shall be liable for any injuries or
damages 1o person or property resulting from the acts or omissions of the Respondents, their
officers, dircctors, cmployces, agents, receivers, trustecs, SUuccessors, assigns, or contractors
in carrying out the aclivities required by this CAFO, nor shall EPA or the United States
Government be held oul as 4 party to any contract entered into by the Respondents in carrying
out the activities required by this CAIFO.
K. COSTS

98, Fach party shall bear its own costs and attorney’s fees. Furthermore, each
Respondent specifically waives its right to seek reimbursement of 1ts costs and attorney’s fees
under S U.S.C. § 504 and 40 C.IF.R. Part 17.
L. TERMINATION

99. At such time as the Respondents believe they have completed all of the requirements
of this CAFO, they may request that EPA concur whether all of the requirements of this CAFO
have been satisfied. Such request shall be in writing and shall provide the neccssary
documentation to cstablish whether there has been full compliance with the terms and conditions
of this CAFO, EPA will respond to said request in writing within ninety (90) days of receipt of
the request, This CAFO shall terminate when all actions required to be taken by this CAFO have
been completed, and the Respondents have been notified by the EPA in writing that this CAFO

has been satis{ied and terminated.
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M. EFFECTIVE DATE
10§, This CAT'O, and any subscquent modifications, become cffective upon filing with

the Regional Hearing Clerk,
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THE UNDERSIGNED PARTIES CONSENT TO THE ENTRY OF THIS CONSENT
AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER:

FOR THE RESPONDENT:

Date: 4’} i—'[/IZ/

S Ecology Texas, Inc.
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FOR THE RESPONDENT:

_ _ ' 7 -
Date; w‘f;/;,:r) {¢ur L(?{“‘ 5?5;;; 20t (:ﬂ.tm(,ﬂ 6/‘12?_».*%%7442,_-?
TD*X Associates L.P.
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FOR THE COMPLAINANT:

Date: 003 |2 Qﬁ K/Z"'—“‘"“‘*

reCior
Compliance Assurance and
Linforcement Division
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FINAL ORDER

Pursuant to the Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928, and the Consolidated Rules of
Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, 40 C.F.R, Part 22, the
foregoing Consent Agreement is hereby ratified. This Final Order shall not in any casc affect the
right or EPA or the United Stales Lo pursue apprepriate injunctive relief or other cquitable relief
for criminal sanctions for any violations of law. This [inal Order shall resolve only those causes
of action alleged herein. Nothing in this Final Order shall be construed 10 walve, extinguish or
otherwise afiect the Respondents’ (or their officers, agents, servants, employees, successors, or
assigns) obligation to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes and regulations,
including the regulations that were the subject of this action. The Respondents are ordered 1o
comply with the Compliance Order and terms of seftlement as set forth in the Consent
Agreement. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.31(b). this Final Order shall become effective upon

{iling with the Regional Hearing Clerk,

Dafe: J 0 ;/ Y /1 2.__ - e
! Patrick Rankin
Regional Judicial Officer
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APPENDIX 1 - OPERATING PARAMETERS
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TABLE A

TDU OIL RECLAMATION SYSTEM INTERIM REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO TOU INSTALLATION

: Tag No. Equipment Operating Parameter Operating Parameter Limit Compliance Basis

“TT-18/19 | TDU Drver, Minimum Combustion Chamber | Maintain Temperature > 1,400°F AWEFCO: CPMS’, 6(0-sec time
Temperature delay

PT-1 TDU Dryer, Maximum Internal Pressure . Maintain Pressure < 0.00° W.C. | AWFCO: CPMS, 6-min Rolling

: N L _ _Average RAY -

. OE-1 Purge Vent Gas Stream Maximum O» Oy <% - AWECO: CPMS, 60-sec time

Concentration ' delay

. FE-101 Maximum Purge Vent Rate | Purge Vent Rate < 180 scfin AWFCO: CPMS, Hourly Rolling

Average (HRA)Y

M-100 Minimum Percent Fxcess Air, Operation of Purge Vent Atr Supply > 20% AWFCO: CPMS, Tuning of
E Purge Vent Injector Air Supply Excess Air Combustion Airflow
. TE-28 Maximum Condenser System Exhaust

Temperature

Temperature < 120°F

AWECO: CPMS, [IRA

HEPA Filter Installed and Pressure Change
Monitored to Ensure Integrity of Filter

[nstalled and A Pressure
Monitoring

Installation Check; A Pressure
Monitored Once Per Shift

- Maximum TDU Feed Mercury Concentration

[Hg] < 50 ppm/Bin

Blending Protocols &

Maximum TDU Feed Organic Halide
Concentration

! Documentation”
[Total Organic Halides] < 1,500 Blending Protocols &
| ppr/Bin Documentation

' Continuous Process Monitoring System — See Puragraph 69.1 of CAFO.

“ Previous six !-minute readings are summed and divided by six.

540

C.FR. §8 63.1209(b)(5).

* See Paragraph 69.A.3 of the CAFO.
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TABLE B

TDU OIL RECLAMATION SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS AFTER TOU INSTALLATION
PRE-COMPLIANCE DEMONSTRATION TEST OPERATIONS

| Tag No. | Equipment Operating Parameter | Shakedown (Pre-Test) OPL Compliance Basis
| PT-1 DU Dryer, Maximum Internal Pressurc Maintain Pressure < 0.00” W.C. AWFCO: CPMS’, 6-min RA®
| M-05 | TDU Dryer, Cylinder Rotation On Motor Operating AWFCO: CPMS, Instantaneous |
| M-18 . Product Discharge System Motor Operating - AWFCO: CPMS, Instantaneous
M-21 Recirculation Blower Operating Motor Operating C AWFCQO: CPMS, Instantaneous
TT-121 : TOU, Minimum Combustion Chamber Maintain Temperature > 1 400°F  AWFCO: CPMS, HRA’
. Temperature L o
KY-110 TOU, Minimum Residence Time (Calculated Residence Time > (.5 seconds AWFCO: CPMS, HRA
trom Purge Vent Flow Rate, Exhaust T, and
Ailr Ratio)
AE-5/ TOU Exhaust Gas, Maximum CO [COT< 100 ppmV @ 7% O, AWFCO: CEMS for CO, HRA
OE-S | Concentration ) e B | B
QE-1 | Purge Vent Gas Stream, Maximum O, [Oa] < 7% AWFCO: CPMS, Instantaneous
Concentration
FE-101 Maximum Purge Vent Rate Vent Flow < 250 sefm AWFCO: CPMS, HRA
FCV-102 | Valve Position to Ensure Purge Vent is not Valve Closed AWFCO: CPMS, 60-sec delay
1 Directed Away from TOU _ _ o
' M-121 Minimum Percent Excess Air , Operation of Purge Vent Air Supply > 20% AWFCO: CPMS, Tuning of
Purge Vent Injector Air Supply Excess Air Combustion Airtlow
Maximum Condenser Systent Exhaust

"TE-28

Temperature

Maintain Temperature < 120°F

AWFCO: CPMS, HRA

* Continuous Process Monitoring System — Sce Paragraph 69.1 of the CAFO,

Previous six I-minute readings are summed and divided by six.

740 CF.R §§ 63.1209(2)(6) and 63.1209(b)(5).
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HEPA Filter Instalied and Pressure Change
Monitored to Ensure Imtegrity of TI'ilter

Installed and A Pressure
Monitoring

Installation Check; A Pressure
Monttored Once Per Shift

Maximum TDU Feed Mercury Concentration

[I1g] < 30 ppmy/Bin

Blending Protocols &
Documentation”, Feed Stream
Analysis Plan (if appiicabie)g

Maximum TDU Feed Organic Halide
Concentration

[Total Organic Halides] < 1,500
ppo/Bin

Blending Protocols &
Documentation, Feed Stream
Analysis Plan (if applicable)

Maximum TDU Feed Semi-Volatile Metals
Concentration'”

N/A

Maximum TDU Feed Low-Volatile Metals
Concentration'’

Blending Protocols &
Documentation, Feed Stream
Analysis Plan (it applicable}

N/A

Blending Protocols &
Documentation, Feed Stream
Analysis Plan (if applicable)

® See Paragraph 69.A.3 of the CAFO.

® Sec Paragraph 69.A.11 of the CAFO.

O s oy _ . .
Semi-volatile metals means a combination of cadmium and lead.

g - . . . : ~ ‘
Low-volatile metals means a combination of Arsenic, Beryllium, and Chromium.




Docket Nos, RCRA-06-2012-0936 and RCRA-06-2012-0937

TABLE C

TDU QIL RECLAMATION REQUIREMENTS AFTER TOU INSTALLATION
POST-COMPLIANCE DEMONSTRATION TEST OPERATIONS

Purge Vent Injector Air Supply

Excess Atr

Combustion Airflow

| Tag No. ’ Equipment Operating Parameter Interim/Final (Post-Test) OPL Compliance Basis
]
| P1-1 " IDU Dryer, Maximum Internal Pressurc ‘Maintain Pressure < 0.00° W.C. | AWFCO: CPMS", 6-min RA"”
M-05 | TDU Dryer, Cylinder Rotation On Motor Operating AWFCO: CPMS, Instantaneous |
M-18 . Product Discharge System Motor Operating AWEFECO: CPMS, Instantaneous |
M-21 . Recirculation Blower Operating Motor Operating AWFCO: CPMS, Instantaneous
TT-121 | TOU, Minimum Combustion Chamber OPL Established @ > 3-Run AWFCO: CPMS, HRA"
_ Temperature Average from CDT
KY¥-110 TOU, Minimum Residence Time (Calculated Residence Time > (0.5 seconds AWFCO: CPMS, HRA
from Purge Vent Flow Rate, Exhaust T, and
_ | AirRatio)
AE-5/ . TOU Exhaust Gas, Maximum CO Semi-Annual Testing until Waste { Performance Testing in lieu of
OE-53 Concentration Analysis Plan Approved, then CEMS; Waste Analysis Plan
L _ Annual Testing based with other OPLs
OFk-1 Purge Vent Gas Stream, Maximum O, [02] < 7% AWFCO: CPMS, Instantaneous
Concentration ' ) _
FE-101 | Maximum Purge Vent Rate Vent Flow <250 sefm AWFCOQ: CPMS, HRA
FCV-102 | Valve Position to Ensure Purge Vent is not Valve Closed ] AWEFC(O: C@MS, 60-sec fime
: i Directed Away from TOQU _ delay
- M-121 | Minimum Percent Excess Air, Operation of Purge Vent Air Supply > 20% AWFCO: CPMS, Tuning of

" Continuous Process Monitoring System — See Paragraph 69.1 of CAFQ.

13 . . . . .. .
Previous six 1-minute readings are summed and divided by six.

40 CFR. §§ 63.1209(a)(6) and 63.1209(b)(3).
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CTE-28

. Maximum Condenser System Exhaust
Temperature

OPL Established @ < 3-run

Average Bascd on CDT

CAWFCO: CPMS, TIRA

HEPA Filter Instalied and Pressurc Change
Monitored to Ensure Integrity of Filter

Installed and A Pressure
Monitoring

. Installation Check; A Pressure
' Monitored Once Per Shift

Maximum TDU Feed Mercury Concentration

[Hg] <50 ppm/Bin

- Blending Protocols &
- Documentation'®, Feed Stream

© Analysis Plan (if applicable)'®

Maximum TDU Feed Organic Halide
Concentration

QPL !:‘stablished as Measurcd
Ratia'’

|

Blending Protocols &
Documentation, Feed Stream

Maximum TDU Feed Semi-Volatile Metals
Concentration'®

OPL Established as Measured
Ratiolg

Blending Protocols &
Documentation, Feed Stream
Analysis Plan {if applicable)

Maximum TDU Feed Low-Volatile Metals
Concentration™

QPL I:;stablished as Measured
Ratio”!

Blending Protocols &
Documentation, Feed Stream
Analysis Plan (if applicable)

" See Paragraph 69.A.3 of the CAFO.

' See Paragraph 69.A.11 of the CAFO.

" Maximum TDU Feed Concentration established as a measured ratio (not to exceed 4000 ppmy/bin) from cmussions data

collected durtng CDT. See plan example calculations.
% Semi-volatile metals means a combination of cadmium and lead.

| . v . - . . . . -
? Maximum TDU Feed Concentration established as measured ration from emissions data collected during CDT. See plan
example calculations.

20 y N . ) .
Low-volatile metals means a combination of Arsenic, Beryliium, and Chromium.

21 . . . . .. .
Maximum TDU Feed Concentration established as measured ratio from emissions data coliccted during CDT. See plan
example calculations.
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APPENDIX 2 — BLENDING PROTOCOLS

CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS
INFORMATION

DOCUMENT STORED IN FILE ROOM
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APPENDIX 3

COMPLIANCE DEMONSTRATION TEST PLAN

CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS
INFORMATION

DOCUMENT STORED IN FILE ROOM
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the 4 day of October. 2012, the original and one copy of the
foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFQ) was hand delivered (o the Regional
Hearing Clerk, U.S. EPA - Region 6, 1445 Ross Avenue, Dallas, Texas 75202-2733, and that
true and correct copies of the CAFO were sent to the following by the method indicated below:

For US Ecology Texas, Inc.

Certified Matl — Return Receipt Requested — 7007 0710 0002 1385 1491

Mary Reagan

McGinnis, Lochridge & Kilgore, L.L.P.
600 Congress Avenve, Suite 2100
Austin, Texas 78701

Certified Mail - Return Receipt Requested - 7007 0710 0002 1385 1507

J.D. Head

Iritz, Bryne, Head & Harrison, PLLC
0% San Jacinto Bouwlevard

Swite 2000

Austin, TX 78701




